
Page 1 of 92



Page 2 of 92

https://www.ritzcarlton.com/en/hotels/sbarz-the-ritz-carlton-bacara-santa-barbara/overview/


 

 

w  

Page 3 of 92

https://zoom.us/j/95003397302?pwd=alcU0lE0Sk83Gm3T6WM5yvDuwavXkC.1


AMERICAN BAR ENDOWMENT

BOARD OF DIRECTORS BUSINESS AGENDA 
OCTOBER 28, 2024

ALL TIMES BELOW LISTED IN PACIFIC TIME. PLEASE ADJUST FOR YOUR TIME ZONE
ALL TIMES BELOW LISTED IN PACIFIC TIME. PLEASE ADJUST FOR YOUR TIME ZONE

TIME DESCRIPTION

9:00 a.m. - 3:00 p.m.
ABE Board Meeting, Day One

Salon 2, Ritz-Carlton

9:00 a.m. - 10:00 a.m. 

Officers and Directors Reports

ABE President1.
Hon. Lora Livingston, Chaira.

Action: Consideration of Minutes from the June 2024 Board Meetingi.
ABA Officers2.

William S. Bay, Presidenta.
Fritz Langrock, Treasurerb.

ALIP President3.
Hon. Lee S. Edmona.

YLD Liaison4.
Dani Borel, Chaira.

AEFC Pension Liaison5.
Randy S. Noela.

ABE Executive Director6.
Dana Sturtz Hilla.

10:00 a.m. - 10:15 a.m. Break

10:15 a.m. - 12:00 p.m.

Insurance Committee: Randy Noel, Chair, Hon. Lee Edmon, Vice Chair
NYL Report1.

Ching Wanga.
Dan O’Brienb.

Reserves Report2.
Dave Armstronga.

Action: Consideration of Resolution to increase QuickDecision Limit to $1M3.

12:00 p.m. - 1:15 p.m. Lunch (Salon 2, Terrace)

1:15 p.m. Resume Business Matters

1:15 p.m. - 3:00 p.m.

3:00 p.m. Adjournment of Day One

Page 4 of 92

Grants Committee: Roberta Liebenberg, Chair, Bob Carlson, Vice Chair
1. Report of the Grants Committee Chair

a. Action: Consideration of Minutes from the Committee Meeting

2. FJE Report:
a. Orlando Lucero
b. Lea Snipes

3. ABF Report
a. Sandra Chan
b. Mark Suchman

4. Charitable Gift Funds (To be discussed in Executive Session)



TIME DESCRIPTION

9:00 a.m. - 5:00 p.m.
ABE Board Meeting, Day Two

Salon 2, Ritz-Carlton

9:00 a.m. -10:15 a.m. 

10:15 a.m. - 10:30 a.m. Break

10:30 a.m. - 12:00 p.m.

Finance Committee: Kevin Shepherd, Chair, Hilarie Bass, Vice Chair
1. Report of the Finance Committee Chair

a. Action: Consideration of Minutes from the Committee Meeting

2. Marquette Report
a. Jamie Wesner

12:00 p.m. - 1:00 p.m. Lunch (Salon 2, Terrace)

1:00 p.m. Resume Business Matters (Remainder of day held in Executive Session)

1:00 p.m. - 2:30 p.m. 
Finance Committee 

Audit Update1.
Any Other Business2.

2:30 p.m. - 3:30 p.m. 

Strategic Planning Committee: Tracy Giles, Chair, Tommy Preston, Vice
Chair

1. Report of the Strategic Planning Committee Chair
a. Action: Consideration of Minutes from the Committee Meeting

2. Any Other Business

3:30 p.m. - 5:00 p.m. Concluding Business: Hon. Lora Livingston

5:00 p.m. Board Meeting Adjourns

AMERICAN BAR ENDOWMENT

BOARD OF DIRECTORS BUSINESS AGENDA

OCTOBER 29, 2024

ALL TIMES BELOW LISTED IN PACIFIC TIME. PLEASE ADJUST FOR YOUR TIME ZONE

Page 5 of 92

Communications Committee: Tommy Preston, Chair, Trish Lee Refo, Vice Chair
1. ZeisGroup Report

a. Joe Schonhoff



Page 6 of 92



 

Page 7 of 92



Page 8 of 92



Page 9 of 92



 

 

 

Page 10 of 92



Page 11 of 92



 

Page 12 of 92



Page 13 of 92



 

Page 14 of 92



 

 

Page 15 of 92



Insurance Committee 

Page 16 of 92



ABE BOARD MEETING
SANTA BARBARA, CA

OCTOBER 2024

Page 17 of 92



AGENDA

Ching Wang, Head of GMAD:
NYL Update
Industry Trends

Daniel O’Brien, VP, Sales and Service:
ABE Account Updates:

• Financial reports; Life and OOE
• QuickDecision on DI and 10 and 20

Level Term.
• New QD recommendation:

- Increase to $1Mil
• Quality and Security assessments

- Policy Change
• 70 years of Partnership!

2Page 18 of 92



CHING WANG
HEAD OF GMAD

Page 19 of 92



44

• When the Fed raises rates, sectors slow in a sequential manner.  Once it starts, the pace at which the dominos fall
can be impacted by various forces.

• Deceleration has been sluggish due in part to pandemic related imbalances in the economy

• Takes avg. of 23 months from first Fed hike to work it’s way to labor market.  We’re at month 30.  Some weakness is
starting to show…

• Absence of a recession doesn’t mean one won’t still happen.  Past soft landings included modest rate increases and
other factors absent from current conditions.  But with each passing quarter….

Page 20 of 92

Ashley Durkin
Cross-Out

Ashley Durkin
Cross-Out



5

Why the Economy 
has Held Up So Far

Recession Risks

Factors pushing for and against recession

• Interest rates are restrictive.  Lag between hikes and impact to economy can vary,
but it will keep pressure on the dominoes (real fed funds rate less "natural" rate of
interest)

• Yield curve inversion makes lending less attractive to banks - which have also
tightened lending standards

• Slowing momentum and optimism among small business (1/2 of private
employment)

Page 21 of 92



6

• Examples: New York Life, Northwestern Mutual,
MassMutual

• Emphasis on stable value to policy holders.  Patient
capital

• Gaining market share by maintaining focus on agency
distribution and retail life insurance & annuities

• Examples: MetLife, Prudential, Lincoln and Voya

• Motivated by short to medium term shareholder
returns.  Not so patient capital…

• Divesting capital-intensive businesses in favor of less
capital-intensive businesses like group benefits &
asset mgmt. (higher P/Es)

• Examples: Apollo / Athene, KKR / Global Atlantic and
Carlyle / Fortitude Re

• Increasing presence in the sector; about 15% of U.S.
life & annuity assets

• Accumulates insurance liabilities to drive AUM
growth for their asset management businesses

Mutual Life 
Insurers

Public Life 
Insurers

Alt. Asset 
Mgrs. Private 
Equity

Strategy Shaped by OwnershipIndustry Headwinds & Tailwinds

• Higher interest rates generate better
investment returns and demand for rate
sensitive products like annuities

• Employment remains high enabling
consumer insurance purchases and
covered employees in group insurance

• Commercial real estate drags on insurer
investment returns

• Higher inflation hurts consumer
purchasing power and corporate
expenses – now abating

• Covid impact largely priced into
insurance

Page 22 of 92



7

• GMAD continues in our multi-year push to bring clients / products onto our Quick
Decision (QD) platform

• QD allows straight through processing for underwriting by utilizing data and
reflexive questions. Avoids exams (fluids) and physician statements

• Improves applicant experience, reduces withdrawals, increases sales

• New data and analytics will push our capabilities forward in 2025…

Quick Decision / 
Fluidless 

Underwriting

Generative AI

• Everybody is trying to use this buzzword technology.  So are we!

• NYL has several larger programs that are promising – mainly around service and
claims correspondence

• GMAD focused on using Generative AI in 2 areas:
o Managing insurance policies & agreements
o Marketing material creation (see next page)

Page 23 of 92



New York Life Marketing – 
AI Video Production
New York Life is exploring use of Artificial 
Intelligence software to produce videos. 

Create video content quickly and 
economically

Ability to personalize select videos for 
case-specific use

Demonstrate ease of portal use with 
video tutorials and guided experiences

Produce training materials for TPAs on 
portal customizations (ex: Portal URL 
Parameters)

GMAD & Generative AI – Marketing Example

Page 24 of 92



DAN O’BRIEN, VP
SALES & SERVICE

Page 25 of 92



ABE LIFE 
REPORT –
6/1/2023 - 5/31/2024

FINANCIAL EXPERIENCE 
SUMMARY 

10Page 26 of 92



11Page 27 of 92



ABE OOE REPORT –
7/1/2023 - 6/30/2024
FINANCIAL EXPERIENCE
SUMMARY  

12Page 28 of 92



13Page 29 of 92



New 2024 Product Launch 
10 and 20 

 QuickDecisionsm 

QuickDecision on the 10 and 20 products successfully launched on June 25, 2024.
Promotional campaigns were recently dropped in July, August and September. (Zeis will review the results of these
campaigns)
Only one state filing was required on the 20 yt. in MT. The filing was submitted in August and is pending MT’s review.

14

2023 Product Launch
All 3 DI Products 
QuickDecisionSM

QuickDecision on the DI products launched in June 2023.
Multiple promotional campaigns have dropped since the launch: Direct Mail in July 2023, Nov. 2023, Sept 2024 and
email campaigns in: July/Nov/Dec 2023 and Jan/Mar/Apr/Jun 2024. (Zeis will review the results of these campaigns)
Since the launch GMAD has secured filing approvals in MO, MN, OH, VA, VT & UT. (Pending are CA, ME, ID, NH).

QUICKDECISION

Page 30 of 92



15

The launch of QD 10 and 20 YLT coincided with the introduction of a Super Preferred rate class for non-QD/fully 
underwritten amounts (over $500k).  We will monitor the percentage of fully underwritten insureds qualifying for the 
Super Preferred rate class before lifting the Level Term Life QD limit to $1M given applicants applying for amounts 
over $500k typically expect the availability of a Super Preferred rate class.

We are also testing new underwriting enhancements with our vendor Milliman in late 2024 into 2025 that allows us to 
obtain not only Prescription data but also Medical claims data. We believe these new features will help us increase the 
QD limits on Level Term and potentially offer a Super Preferred rate class with QD. 

Financial performance on the ABE Life plans has been strong.
The CSR is fully funded at 100% (of EAP), and the DOD is about 150% representing $27M in surplus funds.
A higher QD limit is a needed tool to improve the customer experience and improve sales.
If we can grow premium stream, the long-term impact would be positive for the program’s overall health.
We are monitoring all QD activity and results closely and propose adjustments as needed.

Recommendation to Increase QuickDecision to $1Million on ART and Level Term 

ART Plan:

Level Term Plans:

Page 31 of 92



16

• Assessment closed out in late August. The assessment highlighted the strength of the business
resiliency controls, while identifying opportunities for improvement in the information security
controls.

• The last quality review conducted on ABE's administrative functions was in 2021. At the request
of ABE, the compliance team accommodated moving the 2023 review to 2024.

• The 2024 quality review performed was a full scope review of the administrative functions
performed by ABE. Those functions include application processing, certificate issuance,
member services, premium billing and collection, restoration of coverage, claims, regulatory
requirements, service standards and unclaimed property.

New York Life/GMAD Assessments 

Page 32 of 92



17

Policy change: 

• If the group policies include the continued membership provision, then the administrator needs to have a process in place to
monitor the membership of insureds.

• Any covered individuals who are no longer members are ineligible for insurance, as described in the policy, and are to be
notified that their coverage is terminating in accordance with the policy provisions, unless membership is restored.

• If membership is not restored as of the renewal date, records are to be updated with a terminated status.
• Proof of current membership is required to continue coverage.

New York Life proposed 2 options for administering this provision:
1. Remove the provision from the group policies. Or
2. Implement a process to monitor membership and terminate when ABE identifies an insured is no longer a

member.

ABE has approved moving forward with Option 1. above, a policy change to all the ABE Group Policies has been submitted. 

Page 33 of 92



18

American 
Bar

Endowment

70
Page 34 of 92



QUESTIONS?
TAKEAWAYS
Q
T

19

Thank you,
For your 
partnership!

Page 35 of 92



5-Oct-24
Product/Category Carrier Held Reserve* ABE Held Reserve** Total Carrier

Life Plans
IBNR $622,601 $0 NYL
Pending $3,040,000 $0 NYL
Waiver $23,774 $0 NYL
Policy/Deficiency $21,676,250 $0 NYL
CSR $11,526,682 $0 NYL
DOD $16,167,025 $0 NYL
Total Life $53,056,332 $0 NYL

Long Term Disability
NYL

IBNR/Disablements< 1 Year $2,924,838 $0 NYL
Disablements> 1 Year $4,743,267 $0 NYL
CSR $3,116,301 $0 NYL
DOD $4,600,004 $0 NYL
Misc $0 $3,727,259 USL
Total LTD $15,384,410 $3,727,259 NYL

Office Overhead
IBNR $34,075 $0 NYL
Disablements< 1 Year $22,835 $0 NYL
Disablements> 1 Year $0 $0 NYL
CSR $116,561 $0 NYL
DOD $400,000 $0 NYL
Total OOE $573,471 $0 NYL
Total Disability $15,957,881 $3,727,259 NYL

Accidental Death (AD&D)
IBNR $83,854 $0 NYL
Pending $0 $0 NYL
CSR $689,608 $0 NYL
Total AD&D $773,462 $0 NYL

Hospital Money (HIP/HMP)
IBNR $86,469 $0 NYL
CSR $171,834 $0 NYL
Total HIP/HMP $258,303 $0 NYL

Excess Medical
IBNR $1,698,616 $0 USL
CSR $693,021 $0 USL
Misc $0 $8,426,030 USL
Total EMM $2,391,637 $8,426,030 USL

Total Reserves $72,437,615 $12,153,289 $84,590,904 NYL/USL

*Last Carrier Annual Accounting
**Last Marquette Report

Page 36 of 92



Page 37 of 92



Communications Committee 

Page 38 of 92



Page 39 of 92

https://www.dropbox.com/scl/fi/vd1g4u2uxyl2o9ssxhrrh/ABE-7158-Communications-Presentation-10.15.24-V6.pptx?rlkey=akg5kpt3kekfvt030vaohgkza&st=6997s334&dl=0


ABE Communications Committee 
Update

10/28/24

Page 40 of 92



Agenda

•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Page 41 of 92



New Business Report YOY Comparison

•
•
•
•

Page 42 of 92



Grants Committee 

Page 43 of 92



 

Page 44 of 92



 
 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Page 45 of 92



•
•

•

•
•

•

Page 46 of 92



Page 47 of 92



Page 48 of 92



2 

Page 49 of 92



Page 50 of 92



Page 51 of 92



•

•

•

•

Page 52 of 92



 

•

•

•

•

•

•

Page 53 of 92



•

o
o
o

 

•
o

•
o

Page 54 of 92



Recognizing that donors often want to designate gifts to specific programs that they care about, 
the FJE works collaboratively with entities to increase donations for their mission-driven work. 
The FJE understands that positioning the ABA for transformational donations and grants is the 
goal in our development efforts. With the support of substantial unrestricted gifts like the ABE’s, 
the ABA and its entities are poised to strategize on the greater impact they want to have in the 
world. Based upon the growth over time, the FJE has set the following individual goals for 
FY2025: 

FY2025 Individual Donor Results 
• GOAL: Increase number of donors by 10% over FY2024 to 2,615 donors in FY2025
• GOAL: Increase amount raised by 10% over FY2024 to $1,564,000 in FY2024

IV. ABA Giving Day

The ABA is proud to announce the celebration of its fifth annual ABA Giving Day on October 
24. ABA Giving Day is a powerful fundraising campaign dedicated to raising essential funds for
programs that ensure access to justice, support vulnerable communities, and advance the legal
profession. This year's campaign highlights 50 ABA initiatives that provide free legal services,
assist underserved populations, and promote diversity and inclusion within the legal field. The
2024 campaign has set a stretch goal to raise $500,000 across participating entities, an increase
of 25% from the $400,000 raised in 2023.

With the support of ABA members, donors, and volunteers, ABA Giving Day continues to grow, 
amplifying its impact year after year. Donations collected during the celebration support key 
ABA initiatives, including: 

• Access to Justice: Providing free and affordable legal services to low-income individuals
and families, ensuring they receive the representation they deserve.

• Advancing Diversity and Inclusion: Funding scholarships, mentorships, and pipeline
programs to increase representation in the legal profession and create a more equitable
system.

• Pro Bono Legal Support: Supporting lawyers who volunteer their time to provide legal
services to communities in need, reinforcing the ABA’s commitment to public service.

2020

The inaugural event in October 2020 
focused on eight programs that 

addressed the impact of the pandemic 
and racial injustice.

2021

The 2021 theme, Community First, 
generated engagement from members 

and the public, raising more than 
$250,000 from over 730 donors. 

2022

The 2022 ABA Giving Day raised nearly 
$280,000 for ABA programs with the 

theme Advancing Democracy, Equity & 
Justice. 

2023

The 2023 ABA Giving Day expands to 
include all ABA entities conducting 
charitable work and continues the 

theme Advancing Democracy, Equity & 
Justice.

Page 55 of 92



•

•

Page 56 of 92



Page 57 of 92



I. Hiring and Succession Planning

Page 58 of 92



 

II. Highlights from the ABF Research Portfolio

 

1. The Language of Law Professors – : 
The Language of Law School: Learning to

Think Like a Lawyer, 

outside

Page 59 of 92



 

is

2. Portrait Project: Asian Americans in the Legal Profession – 
: 

 

Page 60 of 92



 

1. Verification of Voter Eligibility – : 

de facto

Shelby County v.
Holder

per se

2. Constructing Feminized Courts and Carceral Institutions – :

Page 61 of 92



 

 

1. Legal Characteristics of International Organizations – :

2. Branding Law: Genre, Rule of Law, and U.S. Federal Public Legislation – 

London Review of
International Law

Page 62 of 92



 

III. The Contribution of ABF Fellowships

William H. Neukom Fellows Research Chair in Diversity
and Law

Bringing Down the Big House: From the Invisible
Land to the Upcycled Place

 Summer Undergraduate Research Fellowship (SURF)

 

Doctoral Research Fellowships

Page 63 of 92



 

 
Postdoctoral Research Fellowships

IV. Budgets and Financial Condition

Page 64 of 92



 

 

 

 ABE annual grant $3.8 million (42%) 
 
 
 

 

 

Page 65 of 92



 

 
   
   
 

V. ABF Fundraising and Development Efforts

 

 William C. Hubbard Law and Education Conference Endowment

 Ruth Bader 
Ginsburg Endowed Fund for Research in Civil Rights and Gender Equality

Page 66 of 92



 

third-party grant revenue

Council of Advisors

ABF Alumni Association

ABE Opportunity Grants Program

VI. Conclusion

Page 67 of 92



 

Page 68 of 92



Page 69 of 92



Page 70 of 92



Finance Committee 

Page 71 of 92



Minutes of the Finance Committee Meeting 
American Bar Endowment 

October 21, 2024 

The Finance Committee of the American Bar Endowment held a regular meeting October 
21, 2024, via Zoom.  Committee members in attendance for the meeting were: 

Kevin Shepherd, Chair Randy Noel 
Hilarie Bass, Vice Chair Betty Balli Torres 
Deborah Enix-Ross  Tracy Giles 

Also present for the meeting were: 

Hon. Lora J. Livingston, Ex-Officio 
Dana Sturtz Hill, ABE Executive Director 
Izzy Eisen, ABE Staff 

Mr. Shepherd opened the meeting, stating that while there were other matters that would be 
covered in Santa Barbara, this meeting would focus solely on the audit review and the 
adjustments to the 2023 financial statements.  He then turned to Ms. Hill, who began her report 
by sharing that for the FYE 6/30/2024, ABE ended up $1 million favorable to our revenue 
budget and $1 million favorable to our operating expense budget.  Through Q1, ABE is on track 
with its budget, slightly favorable due to the negotiated rent.   

Ms. Hill then noted that the auditors had completed all fieldwork.  During fieldwork, ABE 
management uncovered a prior period error, and thus there will be a restatement. A liability was 
incorrectly recorded.  This error will result in ABE’s net assets increasing for 2023 and 2022 
(comparative statements) by ~$7.5 million and $7.2 million, respectively.  This restatement will 
have no bearing on the auditor’s issuance of a “clean” (unmodified) opinion.  Mr. Shepherd 
asked why the error is only being caught now if it was initially recorded in 2017.  Ms. Hill 
agreed that both auditor firms (Ernst & Young and RSM) should have caught it earlier, but there 
was a lack of knowledge or communication between ABE management and the auditors, and the 
transition to a new Executive Director (ED) allowed ABE to reassess its processes, uncovering 
this error.  There will be a communication (in the form of a letter from the auditor) of a material 
weakness of internal controls provided to the Finance Committee.  There was some discussion 
around the difference between the erroneous liability, and the “earmarked” assets that were being 
held, and that the amount of the assets should be routinely (Ms. Hill proposed annually) 
reviewed by the ED, ABE’s insurance advisor, and the insurance committee.  Mr. Shepherd 
inquired into the cost of the additional work required by RSM, and who was responsible for 
paying those costs. Ms. Hill replied that it would be ~$10K - $20K and her expectation is that 
RSM would absorb those costs.   She also noted the final audit would not be ready for 4-6 weeks. 

Ms. Enix-Ross then asked what the lessons and takeaways should be for the Board members, and 
what can they do to prevent this type of error in the future.  Judge Lora Livingston and Mr. 
Shepherd agreed that cross-committee communication and overall transparency should be what 
the Board members prioritize, and Ms. Bass recommended Judge Livingston pose the question to 

Page 72 of 92



the full Board at the upcoming meeting in executive session.  Mr. Shepherd further noted that his 
goal as Finance Committee Chair would be largely based on enhanced transparency of financial 
information.  

Ms. Hill detailed the many efficiencies that had already been implemented that would greatly 
ease the audit process moving forward, as well as additional moves she will be making over the 
next few quarters.  Finally, Ms. Hill noted that she had increased the coverage for D&O, EPL, 
E&O and cyber insurance effective 10/1 after discussion with ABE’s insurance broker, Alliant.  

Respectfully submitted, 

Kevin Shepherd 
Chair 

Page 73 of 92



 
 
 

Page 74 of 92

https://www.dropbox.com/scl/fi/fmo0oo5rcv009g4qfiymy/3Q24-Market-Environment.pdf?rlkey=uwo5b7i5ivn1fmo5no4818fr4&st=y6g85hq0&dl=0
https://www.dropbox.com/scl/fi/xzhjby9wpwgb3p9frzj6a/ABE-0924.pdf?rlkey=o1aguz8zmu7oo5k3g2bt1gazf&st=5b05g2u5&dl=0
https://www.dropbox.com/scl/fi/2vm3ljs55smd15p45ac4e/ABE-3Q24.pdf?rlkey=r9xyqf9hz0wyawt8ez5err8d3&st=9i4xigsn&dl=0


Market Tracker September 2024

U.S. Equity Returns Yield Curve Fixed Income Returns
Sep YTD 1 Yr Sep YTD 1 Yr

S&P 500 2.1% 22.1% 36.4% Aggregate 1.3% 4.4% 11.6%

Russell 3000 2.1% 20.6% 35.2% Universal 1.4% 4.9% 12.1%

NASDAQ 2.8% 21.8% 38.6% Government 1.2% 3.8% 9.7%

Dow Jones 2.0% 13.9% 28.8% Treasury 1.2% 3.8% 9.7%

Int. Gov/Credit 1.1% 4.7% 9.4%

Non-U.S. Equity Returns Long Gov/Credit 2.3% 3.5% 17.2%

Sep YTD 1 Yr TIPS 1.5% 4.9% 9.8%

ACWI 2.3% 18.7% 31.8% Municipal 5 Year 0.7% 2.2% 7.6%

ACWI ex. US 2.7% 14.2% 25.4% High Yield 1.6% 8.0% 15.7%

EAFE Index 0.9% 13.0% 24.8% Bank Loans 0.7% 6.6% 9.7%

EAFE Local -0.4% 12.0% 17.5% Global Hedged 1.2% 4.4% 10.6%

EAFE Growth 0.4% 12.3% 26.5% Style Index Returns EM Debt Hard Currency 1.8% 8.6% 18.6%

EAFE Value 1.4% 13.8% 23.1%

EAFE Small Cap 2.6% 11.1% 23.5% Hedge Fund Returns
Emerging Markets 6.7% 16.9% 26.1% Sep YTD 1 Yr
EM Small Cap 3.7% 12.9% 23.0% HFRX Equal Wtd. 0.9% 4.5% 6.8%

HFRX Hedged Equity 0.8% 7.6% 11.5%

Regional Returns HFRX Event Driven 0.6% 3.9% 5.3%

Sep YTD 1 Yr HFRX Macro 2.1% 4.1% 2.8%

Europe 0.4% 12.8% 25.3% HFRX Relative Value 1.1% 4.4% 6.4%

Asia ex-Japan 8.4% 21.2% 28.9% CBOE PutWrite 1.5% 13.4% 18.6%

EM Latin America 0.1% -12.5% 2.8% U.S. Equity Sector Returns
UK 0.3% 15.4% 23.3% Commodity Returns
Germany 3.7% 16.9% 32.1% Sep YTD 1 Yr
France 1.3% 5.5% 16.4% GSCI Total -0.1% 5.2% -6.1%

Japan -0.6% 12.4% 21.6% Precious Metals 6.3% 28.0% 41.4%

China 23.9% 29.3% 23.9% Livestock 1.9% 14.8% 4.4%

Brazil -0.9% -12.9% 2.6% Industrial Metals 6.8% 12.2% 12.4%

India 2.1% 25.4% 40.3% Energy 0.5% -4.1% -21.5%

Agriculture 7.6% -2.8% -3.1%

Real Estate Returns WTI Crude Oil -5.8% 5.0% -13.4%

Qtr YTD 1 Yr Gold 5.7% 27.2% 41.7%

NCREIF NPI National* -0.3% -1.2% -5.5%

FTSE NAREIT 16.2% 13.7% 33.7%
*Returns as of June 30, 2024

Month-to-Date Year-to-Date

Value Core Growth Value Core Growth

21.2% 24.5%

M
id 1.9% 2.2% 3.3% M
id 15.1% 14.6% 12.9%

La
rg

e

1.4% 2.1% 2.8%

La
rg

e

16.7%

11.2% 13.2%

Sm
al

l

0.1% 0.7% 1.3%

Sm
al

l

9.2%

-5%
0%
5%

10%
15%
20%
25%
30%
35%

Month-to-Date Year-to-Date

0.0%

1.0%

2.0%

3.0%

4.0%

5.0%

6.0%

0 10 20 30

Y
ie

ld
 

Most Recent Month Ago Year Ago

1
Page 75 of 92



Total Fund Composite Total Fund Custom Benchmark

0.0

6.0

12.0

18.0

24.0

R
e

tu
rn 

(%
)

1
Month

Year
To

Date

1
Year

3
Years

5
Years

7
Years

10
Years

1.2

8.9

16.0

3.2

7.7 7.1 7.1

1.4

10.4

17.5

5.6

8.9
7.9 7.7

Totall Fundd Compositee vss Targett Allocation

Target Actual Difference

0.0% 15.0% 30.0% 45.0%-15.0 %

Cash

Private Equity

Real Estate

Hedge Funds

Global Equity

Non-U.S. Equity

U.S. Equity

Fixed Income

0.0%

12.5%

10.0%

12.5%

5.0%

17.0%

23.0%

20.0%

2.5%

10.3%

6.6%

12.9%

4.8%

18.2%

27.9%

16.6%

2.5%

-2.2 %

-3.4 %

0.4%

-0.2 %

1.2%

4.9%

-3.4 %

Summaryy off Cashh Flows

1
Yearr ($)

3
Yearss ($)

5
Yearss ($)

Total Fund Composite

Beginning Market Value 155,939,964 164,082,853 134,447,520

Net Cash Flow -2,127,007 -15,066,650 -24,621,952

Gain/Loss 27,422,993 32,219,747 71,410,381

Ending Market Value 181,235,950 181,235,950 181,235,950

Endowment Performance Summary

As of September 30, 2024

2
Page 76 of 92



11 Mo
(%)

33 Mo
(%)

YTD
(%)

11 Yr
(%)

33 Yrs
(%)

55 Yrs
(%)

77 Yrs
(%)

100 Yrs
(%)

SI
(%)

Inception
Date

Totall Fundd Composite 1.4 4.9 10.4 17.5 5.6 8.9 7.9 7.7 5.3 Novv 99

   Total Fund Custom Benchmark 1.2 4.7 8.9 16.0 3.2 7.7 7.1 7.1 -

Fixedd Incomee Composite 1.2 4.3 4.7 10.5 -0.5 1.0 2.0 2.2 3.9 Aprr 03

   Blmbg. U.S. Aggregate Index 1.3 5.2 4.4 11.6 -1.4 0.3 1.5 1.8 3.3

Baird Ultra Short Bond 0.5 1.7 4.5 6.3 3.7 - - - 2.8 Jul 20

   Blmbg. U.S. Short-term Government/Corporate Index 0.5 1.7 4.2 5.8 3.3 2.4 2.3 1.8 2.4

Baird Aggregate Bond 1.4 5.2 5.0 12.6 -1.1 0.8 1.8 - 2.1 Jan 15

   Blmbg. U.S. Aggregate Index 1.3 5.2 4.4 11.6 -1.4 0.3 1.5 1.8 1.7

Northern Trust Aggregate Bond Index 1.3 5.2 4.4 11.5 -1.5 0.3 1.4 - 1.7 Nov 14

   Blmbg. U.S. Aggregate Index 1.3 5.2 4.4 11.6 -1.4 0.3 1.5 1.8 1.8

EEndowment Annualized Performance (Net of Fees)

As of September 30, 2024

3
Page 77 of 92



EEndowment Annualized Performance (Net of Fees)

As of September 30, 2024

11 Mo
(%)

33 Mo
(%)

YTD
(%)

11 Yr
(%)

33 Yrs
(%)

55 Yrs
(%)

77 Yrs
(%)

100 Yrs
(%)

SI
(%)

Inception
Date

U.S.. Equityy Composite 1.8 6.7 19.0 33.7 8.9 14.1 12.5 12.1 7.7 Novv 99

   Russell 3000 Index 2.1 6.2 20.6 35.2 10.3 15.3 13.7 12.8 8.1

Rhumbline S&P 500 Index 2.1 5.9 22.0 36.2 - - - - 28.0 Jan 23

   S&P 500 Index 2.1 5.9 22.1 36.4 11.9 16.0 14.5 13.4 28.1

NT Russell 2000 Equity Index 0.7 9.3 11.2 26.8 1.8 9.4 7.4 8.9 8.5 Jan 04

   Russell 2000 Index 0.7 9.3 11.2 26.8 1.8 9.4 7.4 8.8 8.4

Internationall Equityy Composite 2.9 9.0 13.8 23.6 5.5 8.1 5.2 5.0 4.0 Novv 99

   MSCI AC World ex USA (Net) 2.7 8.1 14.2 25.4 4.1 7.6 5.4 5.2 4.8

Dodge & Cox International Stock Fund 3.5 10.0 13.4 21.2 8.1 9.1 5.2 4.8 5.0 Aug 08

   MSCI AC World ex USA Value (Net) 2.8 9.3 14.4 24.0 7.5 7.8 4.9 4.3 3.6

Northern Trust ACWI ex-US Equity Index 2.7 8.0 14.0 25.1 4.2 7.5 5.4 5.2 5.5 Oct 08

   MSCI AC World ex USA (Net) 2.7 8.1 14.2 25.4 4.1 7.6 5.4 5.2 5.5

Goldman Sachs International Small Cap Insights 2.1 9.1 14.5 26.1 2.7 7.4 4.4 - 7.2 Jan 17

   MSCI EAFE Small Cap (Net) 2.6 10.5 11.1 23.5 -0.4 6.4 4.2 6.2 6.8

Globall Loww Volatilityy Composite 0.2 9.1 17.3 27.5 - - - - 15.7 Febb 23

   MSCI AC World Minimum Volatility Index (Net) 1.0 9.8 15.4 22.9 5.8 6.1 7.2 7.8 12.8

MFS Low Volatility Global Equity Fund 0.2 9.1 17.3 27.5 - - - - 15.7 Feb 23

   MSCI AC World Minimum Volatility Index (Net) 1.0 9.8 15.4 22.9 5.8 6.1 7.2 7.8 12.8

4
Page 78 of 92



EEndowment Annualized Performance (Net of Fees)

As of September 30, 2024

11 Mo
(%)

33 Mo
(%)

YTD
(%)

11 Yr
(%)

33 Yrs
(%)

55 Yrs
(%)

77 Yrs
(%)

100 Yrs
(%)

SI
(%)

Inception
Date

Hedgee Fundd off Fundss Composite 1.2 2.4 10.8 15.7 6.4 8.6 7.1 6.2 6.6 Aprr 09

   HFRI Fund of Funds Composite Index 0.2 1.1 6.0 9.3 2.3 5.3 4.2 3.6 4.0

Grosvenor Institutional Partners, L.P. 1.0 1.6 7.7 10.6 3.2 7.3 5.7 4.6 5.6 Apr 09

   HFRI Fund of Funds Composite Index 0.2 1.1 6.0 9.3 2.3 5.3 4.2 3.6 4.0

Parametric Defensive Equity Fund LLC 1.4 2.9 12.7 19.0 8.8 9.4 8.3 - 8.6 Sep 15

   CBOE S&P 500 Covered Combo Index 1.5 5.5 15.0 21.1 6.9 7.6 7.1 7.2 8.1

Reall Estatee Composite 0.2 0.2 -1.3 -3.5 2.6 4.3 5.1 7.0 9.0 Jann 11

   NFI-ODCE 0.0 0.0 -3.2 -8.1 -1.1 2.0 3.2 5.2 7.0

Morgan Stanley Prime Property Fund, LLC 0.2 0.2 -1.3 -3.5 2.6 4.3 5.1 7.0 9.0 Jan 11

   NFI-ODCE 0.0 0.0 -3.2 -8.1 -1.1 2.0 3.2 5.2 7.0

5
Page 79 of 92



Presented by

Portfolio Update

James R. Wesner, CFA

October 2024

This presentation is furnished on a confidential basis to the recipient for informational purposes only. For disclosure information, please refer to the end of this presentation.

Page 80 of 92



Portfolio Review

2

25%

20%

20%

12.5%

10%

12.5%

Current

U.S. Equity International Equity Fixed Income

Hedged Strategies Real Estate Private Markets

U

H

60%20%

20%

2008 Asset Allocation

U.S. Equity International Equity Fixed Income

• Significant changes to asset allocation over past 15
years

Page 81 of 92



Portfolio Review

3

• Asset Allocation for Total ABE Assets differs slightly
from Legal Legacy Fund targetsg g y g

20.0%

23.0%
22.0%

12.5%

10.0%

12.5%

23.9% 24.3%

20.9%

11.3%

8.7%

10.8%

0.0%

5.0%

10.0%

15.0%

20.0%

25.0%

30.0%

Fixed Income US Equity International Equity Hedged Strategies Real Estate Private Markets

Legal Legacy Fund Total ABE Assets

Page 82 of 92



Additional ABE Assets

4

• ALIP and Corporate accounts are
now invested in Northern Trust
money market fund

• Accounts have been set up at
custodian bank, PNC, for each ABE
investment pool

• Excess Legal Legacy Fund cash at
Northern Trust will be used for
smoothly transitioning assets to PNC
and funding capital calls for new
Levine Leichtman VII commitment

* Moving to custodian account at PNC

Market Value

*Legal Legacy Fund $178,709,091

*Northern Trust - Charitable Gift Fund $1,239,396 

*Northern Trust - Disability Reserve $3,727,259

*EMM Reserve $8,426,030

*EMM Reserve (to be allocated to Legal Legacy Fund) $1,121,427

*Northern Trust Index Funds - Foulis $3,584,261 

Parametric - Foulis $677,114

PIMCO - Foulis $357,142 

BMO - Wealth Management $7,808,287

*Northern Trust - Corporation $285,552 

*Northern Trust - ALIP $213,686

Total $206,149,245

Page 83 of 92



Recommendation

5

• Liquidate Northern Trust index funds, transfer cash to PNC,
purchase more efficient Vanguard and Fidelity mutual funds:

• Legal Legacy Fund

• Charitable Gift Fund

• Disability Reserve

Northern Trust PNC

Asset Class Fund Name
Management 

Fee Fund Name
Management 

Fee

Core Fixed Income NTGI Aggregate Bond Index Fund 0.04% Vanguard Total Bond Market Index Fund 0.035%

All Cap US Equity NTGI Russell 3000 Index Fund 0.03% Vanguard Total Stock Market Index Fund 0.03%

Large Cap US Equity NTGI S&P 500 Index Fund 0.0075% Fidelity 500 Index Fund 0.015%

Small Cap US Equity NTGI Russell 2000 Index Fund 0.03% Fidelity Small Cap Index Fund 0.025%

Broad Non-US Equity NTGI MSCI ACWI ex-US Index Fund 0.06% Fidelity Total International Index Fund 0.06%

Developed Non-US Equity NTGI MSCI EAFE Index Fund 0.04% Fidelity International Index Fund 0.035%

• Foulis Trust

• Corporation

• ALIP

Page 84 of 92



Investment Best Practices

6

• Asset allocation discussion for each pool of capital

• Asset allocation reviewed at a minimum of every 3 years

• Annual review for Legal Legacy Fund

• Clearly defined responsibilities for all parties

• Investment Policy Statement reviewed annually with staff

• Changes to Investment Policy approved by Board

• Regular review of costs

Page 85 of 92



PNC Custodian Transition Update

7

• PNC Custody account open and funded

• Mutual Funds transferred to PNC

• Baird Ultra Short Bond

• Baird Aggregate Bond

• Dodge & Cox International Stock Fund

• Goldman Sachs International Small Cap Insights

• MFS Low Volatility Global Equity Fund

Page 86 of 92



PNC Custodian Transition Update

8

• Commingled Funds and Limited Partnerships are tracked as

line items at PNC, for accounting purposes:

Liquid/Traditional Investments

• Northern Trust Total Bond Index Fund

• Rhumbline S&P 500 Index Fund

• Northern Trust Russell 2000 Index Fund

• Northern Trust ACWI ex-US Index Fund

Page 87 of 92



PNC Custodian Transition Update

9

• Commingled Funds and Limited Partnerships will be tracked

as line items at PNC as well, for accounting purposes:

Illiquid/Alternative Investments

• Parametric Defensive Equity

• Grosvenor Multi-Strategy Hedge Fund

• Morgan Stanley Prime Property Fund

• Levine Leichtman Funds V, VI, and VII (Private Equity)

• PIMCO BRAVO Funds II, III and IV (Private Debt)

Page 88 of 92



Purpose:

Empower our clients 
to meet their 
investment objectives

Vision
Be a trusted partner to our clients 
through effective investment programs

Mission
Provide independent and thoughtful 
investment guidance

Why Marquette?
Our people
Independent expertise
Focused client service
Careful research

Page 89 of 92



PREPARED BY MARQUETTE ASSOCIATES

180 North LaSalle St, Ste 3500, Chicago, Illinois 60601 PHONE 312-527-5500

CHICAGO BALTIMORE MILWAUKEE PHILADELPHIA ST. LOUIS WEB MarquetteAssociates.com

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This communication, including attachments, is for the exclusive use of the addressee and contains proprietary, confidential and/or privileged 
information; any use, copying, disclosure, dissemination or distribution is strictly prohibited. Marquette Associates, Inc. retains all proprietary rights they may have in the 
information.

Marquette Associates, Inc. (“Marquette”) has prepared this document for the exclusive use by the client or third party for which it was prepared. The information herein was 
obtained from various sources, including but not limited to third party investment managers, the client's custodian(s) accounting statements, commercially available databases, and 
other economic and financial market data sources.

The sources of information used in this document are believed to be reliable. Marquette has not independently verified all of the information in this document and its accuracy 
cannot be guaranteed. Marquette accepts no liability for any direct or consequential losses arising from its use. The information provided herein is as of the date appearing in this 
material only and is subject to change without prior notice. Thus, all such information is subject to independent verification, and we urge clients to compare the information set 
forth in this statement with the statements you receive directly from the custodian in order to ensure accuracy of all account information. Past performance does not guarantee 
future results and investing involves risk of loss. No graph, chart, or formula can, in and of itself, be used to determine which securities or investments to buy or sell.

Forward looking statements, including without limitation any statement or prediction about a future event contained in this presentation, are based on a variety of estimates and 
assumptions by Marquette, including, but not limited to, estimates of future operating results, the value of assets and market conditions. These estimates and assumptions, 
including the risk assessments and projections referenced, are inherently uncertain and are subject to numerous business, industry, market, regulatory, geopolitical, competitive, 
and financial risks that are outside of Marquette's control. There can be no assurance that the assumptions made in connection with any forward looking statement will prove 
accurate, and actual results may differ materially. Indices have been selected for comparison purposes only. Client account holdings may differ significantly from the securities in 
the indices and the volatility of the index may be materially different from client account performance. You cannot invest directly in an index.

The inclusion of any forward looking statement herein should not be regarded as an indication that Marquette considers forward looking statements to be a reliable prediction of 
future events. The views contained herein are those of Marquette and should not be taken as financial advice or a recommendation to buy or sell any security. Any forecasts, 
figures, opinions, or investment techniques and strategies described are intended for informational purposes only. They are based on certain assumptions and current market 
conditions, and although accurate at the time of writing, are subject to change without prior notice. Opinions, estimates, projections, and comments on financial market trends 
constitute our judgment and are subject to change without notice. Marquette expressly disclaims all liability in respect to actions taken based on any or all of the information 
included or referenced in this document. The information is being provided based on the understanding that each recipient has sufficient knowledge and experience to evaluate 
the merits and risks of investing.

This presentation does not constitute an offer to sell, or a solicitation of an offer to buy, any interest in any investment vehicle, and should not be relied on as such. Targets, ranges 
and expectations set forth in this presentation are approximations; actual results may differ. The information and opinions expressed herein are as of the date appearing in this 
material only, are subject to change without prior notice, and do not contain material information regarding the Marquette Model Portfolio, including specific information relating 
to portfolio investments and related important risk disclosures. The descriptions herein of Marquette’s investment objectives or criteria, the characteristics of its investments, 
investment process, or investment strategies and styles may not be fully indicative of any present or future investments, are not intended to reflect performance and may be 
changed in the discretion of Marquette. While the data contained herein has been prepared from information that Marquette believes to be reliable, Marquette does not warrant 
the accuracy or completeness of such information. Client account holdings may differ significantly from the securities in the indices and the volatility of the index may be materially 
different from client account performance. You cannot invest directly in an index.

ABOUT MARQUETTE ASSOCIATES

Marquette was founded in 1986 with the sole objective of providing investment consulting at the highest caliber of service. Our expertise is grounded in our commitment to client 
service — our team aims to be a trusted partner and as fiduciaries, our clients’ interests and objectives are at the center of everything we do. Our approach brings together the 
real-world experience of our people and our dedication to creativity and critical thinking in order to empower our clients to meet their goals. Marquette is an independent 
investment adviser registered under the Investment Advisers Act of 1940, as amended. Registration does not imply a certain level of skill or training. More information about 
Marquette including our investment strategies, fees and objectives can be found in ourADV Part 2, which is available upon request and on our website. For more information, 
please visit www.MarquetteAssociates.com. Page 90 of 92

http://www.MarquetteAssociates.com


Strategic Planning Committee 

Additional materials will be provided in Santa Barbara

Page 91 of 92



Appendix Materials 

The following Appendix Materials are available at the links below. 

1. Schedule of Events and Meals
2. ABE Articles of Incorporation
3. ABE Bylaws
4. ABA - ABE Memorandum of Agreement
5. ABE Conflict of Interest Policy and List of Firms and Vendors Over $5K
6. ABE Expense Report
7. ABE Expense Policy
8. ABE BOD Contact Information
9. ALIP BOD Contact Information
10. ABE Staff Directory
11. Future Meetings
12. ABA Journal Dividend Reports 2023 and 2024
13. Alliant Renewal Proposal DO-EPL-CRM, EO, CYB

The following are also available at the links below. 

2024 June Board Book 
2024 February Board Book 
2023 October Board Book 

Page 92 of 92

https://www.dropbox.com/scl/fi/n46ggovzgdldrdnpob4rz/Oct24SantaBarbaraScheduleofEvents.pdf?rlkey=huw4erusme30x6vppono6yxzl&st=goawn85d&dl=0
https://www.dropbox.com/scl/fi/o0bklbp87xro49riql8vu/Articles-of-Incorporation-8-25-58.pdf?rlkey=muvwimzisilf662h2aj2r3t32&st=aacabyj7&dl=0
https://www.dropbox.com/scl/fi/tp3mlxhxc7ry0v5x0g4wz/Bylaws-amended-8-14-17.pdf?rlkey=g2wy3lyiy0rr093kldnqg4pve&st=yzlxvvhu&dl=0
https://www.dropbox.com/scl/fi/ng1qblqeeolflcazgsn9h/ABA-ABE-MOA-Agreement.pdf?rlkey=74vo9zjl4blyhrsq05189fond&st=qxqsdc17&dl=0
https://www.dropbox.com/scl/fi/cdkllw9vcgnsdngr2vvz1/13-Conflict-of-Interest-Policy.pdf?rlkey=u5ra5i8u919as3p3m1sr9ypt9&st=91rp6li0&dl=0
https://www.dropbox.com/scl/fi/gqryulp60rvgbh91x9d2i/ABE-Expense-Report.pdf?rlkey=a06jgi5ymk4txqwybpmeaj8ru&st=js45prcy&dl=0
https://www.dropbox.com/scl/fi/z813lzunpqh75cu54vx1i/ABE-ALIP-BOD-Expense-Policy.pdf?rlkey=rz93tn6n5z81eokiaajz75o23&st=ligm2ktu&dl=0
https://www.dropbox.com/scl/fi/tlq6gc1p875jq0ptgto8j/ABE-BOD-Contact-Information-24-25.pdf?rlkey=h4w3plh4qxn41hwjlpgoulsnm&st=c51lrrlq&dl=0
https://www.dropbox.com/scl/fi/fz8yehttl8ht9w9dcmr91/ALIP-BOD-Contact-Information.pdf?rlkey=cpyn3bscxirqx2e0svpddk207&st=egmqi83c&dl=0
https://www.dropbox.com/scl/fi/7b8idnm3lczl82qbp9sm3/ABE-Staff-Directory.pdf?rlkey=5zkjpfqe1imkoccdwzbtg86ri&st=7tc0oiwn&dl=0
https://www.dropbox.com/scl/fi/ce4oi7pe6mmzyod4zete5/Future-Meetings.pdf?rlkey=nsiwpcipngs2jwoaqyj2ou7ec&st=wlnvdbxd&dl=0
https://www.dropbox.com/scl/fi/35om68ymfcvyke02jluoc/ABE-June-2024-Board-Book.pdf?rlkey=gtr4v1kvo5s08usfd480umodm&st=l5gr6q4o&dl=0
https://www.dropbox.com/scl/fi/0d8vkz1ib3abeoy09tn1h/ABE-February-2024-Board-Book.pdf?rlkey=xizbs7iilogk2hfalu8m4dl2a&st=4cgxq9me&dl=0
https://www.dropbox.com/scl/fi/tqapkx8gryznmxs6jcca2/ABE-October-2023-Board-Book.pdf?rlkey=lf2e6ros1gez2uhwdld9isvvz&st=3rwgmuww&dl=0
https://www.dropbox.com/scl/fi/c0p6fa9ktnrumnhhq1p68/ABA-Journal-Dividend-Ads-2023-and-2024.pdf?rlkey=4s4uw5avzmj6b42bclwy2p8oz&st=4es2zr6s&dl=0
https://www.dropbox.com/scl/fi/1oq1ob06tj6ggoepi7a00/Alliant-DO-EPL-CRM-EO-CYB-Proposal-Excerpts.pdf?rlkey=vfj5u0qwb7nf5om607d5q6zz1&st=d1g31o1s&dl=0

	Welcome Letter
	Virtual Attendee Information
	Business Agenda
	2024 - 2025 BOD Committees, Liaisons, and Advisors
	Officers and Directors Reports
	Minutes of the June 2024 BOD Meeting

	Insurance Committee
	NYL Presentation
	Reserves Report
	Resolution to Approve Increase of QuickDecision Limit to $1M

	Communications Committee
	Links to Presentations
	ZeisGroup

	Grants Committee
	Minutes of the Grants Committee Meeting
	Major Grantee Application
	Major Grantee Agreement
	FJE Report
	ABF Report
	Resolution to Discontinue ABE Charitable Gift Fund

	Finance Committee
	Minutes of the Finance Committee Meeting
	Links to Presentations
	Marquette Report

	Strategic Planning Committee



